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1.0 Purpose

The purpose of this document is to consider the house formerly known as ‘Greenlee’
located at 103 Richardson Road, Owairaka, Auckland, against the criteria for evaluation
of historic heritage in the ‘Operative in Part’ Auckland Unitary Plan.

The document has been prepared by Burgess Treep + Knight Architects on the specific
instructions of our client, Auckland Council Heritage Unit, Auckland Council. It is solely
for the use of Auckland Council for the purpose it is intended in accordance with the

agreed scope of work.

2.0 Identification

Site address

103 Richardson Road, Owairaka, Auckland 1025

Legal description and
Certificate of Title identifier

Lot 2 DP 52114

CT NA 64B/167

NZTM grid reference

Based on the NZTM details on the GIS viewer this
is NZTM 1752839, 5915438.

Ownership

Emerge Aotearoa Housing Trust

Unitary Plan zoning

Residential - Mixed Housing Urban Zone
Overlays: Natural Resources: Quality-Sensitive
Aquifer Management Areas Overlay [rp] -
Auckland Isthmus Volcanic

Natural Heritage: Regionally Significant Volcanic
Viewshafts And Height Sensitive Areas Overlay
[rcp/dp] - A1, Mount Albert, Viewshafts

Controls: Macroinvertebrate Community Index
[rcp/dp] — Urban

(HNZPT Act 2014 Section 6)

Existing scheduled item(s) none
Additional controls none
Heritage New Zealand none
Pouhere Taonga listing

Pre-1900 site Unknown.

The place is the site of human activity before 1900
(Part of a farm owned by Thomas Bray in the
1840s) but is not recorded as an archaeological
site and has not been assessed to determine if it
has archaeological values.

CHlI referencels

N/A

NZAA site record number/s

N/A
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3.0 Constraints

The evaluation does not address archaeological values or the importance of the place to
Mana Whenua. The building is two storey and constructed from unreinforced masonry.
The seismic strength / structural integrity of the building has not been evaluated as part
of this assessment.

We have not viewed the interior of the building. This assessment is based on the
available research material, and what can be seen from the public domain.

The evaluation is based on the availability of information provided by Council,
supplemented by the research that we were able to undertake within the time frame. We
acknowledge more in depth additional research may yield new information. The
evaluation is based on the history summary provided, researched and written by Lisa
Truttman, and on the Auckland Council property file information.

We visited Richardson Road and the surrounding area on 16 January 2017.

4.0 Historical summary

BACKGROUND HISTORY OF THE SITE
Source: Primarily taken from Lisa Truttman’s historical summary — Refer to Appendix 1

The building is currently sited on part of the 56 acre Allotment 53 of the Parish of Titirangi,
originally conveyed by Crown Grant to Clement Partridge in June 1845 in exchange for
a land claim totalling 140 acres elsewhere, to the equivalent value of £140. ' The
allotment came to be owned by Thomas Bray in 1855, 2 as part of a larger landholding
along what was to become Richardson Road. The Bray family arrived in Taranaki in
1841, but moved to Auckland by 1844. There, Thomas Bray purchased land, initially near
the Three Kings area * (where he raised cattle), * then he and his sons George and
William purchased Allotments 58 (1850), 52 (1852) with 57 (1853) and finally 53 (1855),
all in the Parish of Titirangi °. In today’s terms this farm would have stretched from
between the Oakley Creek and New North Road in the north-west then down across
New North Road including all the land between Richardson Road and the creek, to
approximately where Richardson Road meets Hendon Avenue, and including today’s
Alan Wood Reserve.

By 1863, Thomas Bray had a business at Newton, selling “boards, scantling and joists”,
6 so it is likely he began to lease at least part of his farm by that stage. It is documented
that by 1867, Bray had leased Allotments 52 and 53 to John Fletcher. ’ Fletcher lived on
the combined property at that time.2 Bray then leased allotments 52 and 53 to his son
George in 1870. ® George Bray died in May 1874, along with his father-in-law Walton
Pell, when the face of the gravel pit at the summit of Owairaka gave way and buried
them. 1% In October 1875, Thomas Bray put both Allotments 52 and 53 up for sale, the
advertisements describing them as:

13G 5183, as included in Application file 1917, ABWN A1825 D16741, Archives New Zealand

22M 741, as noted in Application file 1917

3 Sarah Jane Laurenson, The Bray Saga, 2001

4 Advertisement, New Zealander, 27 May 1848

5 Deeds Index for Parish of Titirangi, LINZ

6 Southern Cross, repeated advertisements, 1863

”MAC 104 Item 1 p.4, Mt Albert Highway District rate books, Auckland Council Archives (online database)
8 Testimony given in court, NZ Herald, 22 October 1868, p.4

9 25D 155, as noted in Application file 1917

10 Southern Cross 8 May 1874, p. 2
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“ ...eight or nine paddocks, all clear of stone and laid down in grass ... There is a GOOD
SIX-ROOMED STONE HOUSE, Dairy and Outbuildings ..."”. 1

Whether this house was on or close to the site of the building at 103 Richardson Road
today is not known.

It appears that Elizabeth Bray, George Bray’s widow, surrendered the lease her husband
had back to his father Thomas in December 1875. > Her son-in-law John Stewart
purchased the property around the same time, 12 and applied for a certificate of title in
May 1882. #* This was finally granted, after a considerable search for missing
documents, in August 1895. *® Richardson Road, from c.1884, was popularly known as
Stewart’s Road for a time. ¢ By 1891, but likely from before, Stewart’s farm was known
as “Green Lee’s farm”, 1’ or Greenlee. He died on 23 June 1895, aged 62.18

John Stewart’s widow Mary Stewart (nee Bray) continued to live on the farm, next to her
son David Alexander Stewart. 1° In 1912 she commissioned architect Arthur Henry White
to design a two-storey brick residence. 2° This appears to have been completed in early
1913; an advertisement placed in the newspapers by building contractors Brookes
Brothers for “plastering and painting” tenders for “a brick residence, Richardson’s Road,”
may refer to Mrs Stewart’s residence. ? Along with this, the rates valuation for her
property rose from £6085 in the year 1912-1913 22 to £7085 for the year 1913-1914.2%

Figure 2: Looking south, south west from Mount Albert over Owairaka, the Manukau Harbour and
Blockhouse Bay and Green Bay (background left) and Waitakere Ranges (background right) with a group
of houses (left) a two-storeyed house ‘Green Lee’ (right) and a paddock covered with large rocks in the
foreground. Image source: Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 4-8424

The house was sold to a charitable organisation ‘the Motherhood of Man’ in 1953. This
organisation was founded during the Second World War for the purpose of caring for
unwed mothers and their children. As a large domestic building this place was easily

11 NZ Herald, 19 October 1875, p 4 (1)

12 21M.8, as noted in Application file 1917

13 21M.8, Deeds Index 16A.737, LINZ records, BAJZ 23662A1660/864a R22764247, Archives New Zealand
14 Application file 1917, ABWN A1825 D16741, Archives New Zealand

15 NA 75/132, LINZ records

16 Report on Mt Albert Road Board meeting, NZ Herald, 8 May 1884, p6

17 Notice, NZ Herald, 27 June 1891, p. 1(7)

18 NZ Herald, 24 June 1895, p. 5

19 Wises Directory, 1910, p. 124

20 Auckland Council property file. In 1948, the residence was described in a building permit application as
being comprised of concrete foundations, brick walls and iron roof (Permit 7152).

21 NZ Herald, 18 February 1913, p 12(4)

22 MAC 104 Item 28, p 108, Auckland Council Archives

23 MAC 104 Item 29, p 110, Auckland Council Archives
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adapted to this purpose. The place remained in use as an infant daycare after 1969
when the house was sold to Maureen Ena Holliday and Joan Marie Platt up until 1986
when it was bought for use as a funeral home by Rodney Funeral Home Ltd. The Mt
Albert Council declined the 1986 application to convert the place for use as a funeral
home. The place was then sold to Thomas and Evelyn Mary Ferguson, rest home
proprietors. It was not used as a rest home. The Ferguson’s sold the house to the
Auckland Hospital Board in 1988. The Hospital Board leased the property to the
Richmond Fellowship for use as a ‘half-way’ house, a hostel for people recovering from
mental health issues. At this time the treatment of mental health issues had undergone
a substantial philosophical shift away from institutionalisation and towards integration in
the community. (This international shift began in Italy with the Basaglia Law of 1978,
named after its proponent psychiatrist Franco Basaglia, the man who advocated the
closure of Italy’s psychiatric asylums).

Ownership of the property was transferred by the Hospital Board to the Richmond
Fellowship Trust (now known as Emerge Aotearoa Housing Trust) in 2001. The house
remains in use as a residential care facility.

THE ARCHITECT

Arthur Henry White (c.1864-1920) was born in Auckland. His parents were early
Wesleyan missionaries. He married Annie Phillips, of the Phillips and Impey oil and
colour merchant family. They had four children, two girls and two boys. Their daughter
Lois (1903-1984) was an accomplished artist, and her work is held in very high regard.
She attended the Elam School of art and design at Auckland University from 1923-27
and went on to teach at Elam, becoming a full-time lecturer in 1948. A retrospective
exhibitioZn of her work ‘By the Rivers of Babylon” was held at the Auckland City Art Gallery
in 1994,

White is said to have learned his profession from the architect Edmund Bell, and in 1886,
he was awarded first certificate and a certificate of merit for architectural drawing and
design at the annual exhibition of the Auckland Society of Arts. > From 1890 % to 1893
he was in partnership with Bell, after which he was in sole practise as an architect and
was also working with his brothers in their mining and land estate agency. %’

White bought a property at 5 Richardson Road around 1911. The house he designed
and built on the property still stands, although the street number is now 17 Richardson
Road. This house is a weatherboard, transitional villa, similar in style to ‘Greenlee’.

Among other works he designed additions to the Prince Albert College, Upper Queen
Street, % additions to the Mt Albert Wesleyan Sunday School, 1897; ?° designed the
Wesleyan Church and Sunday school on Mt Eden Road, 1899; *° a brick store in
Symonds Street, 3! and a shop and store at Kohukohu, 1900; * Forester's Hall,
Birkenhead, ** and two two-storeyed brick shops, Upper Symonds Street, 1903; * ten
brick shops (at the corner of Pitt St and Karangahape Road) for the Pitt Street Methodist
Church, 1904; * a Methodist Church at Rotorua, 1906; * Kaiapoi Woollen Company

24 p.127 Mt Albert Then and Now, Deborah Dunsford. Pub.Mt Albert Historical Society 2016.
25 NZ Herald, 26 April 1886, p.3 (supp)

26 Auckland Star, 2 December 1890, p.8(6)
27 NZ Herald, 28 July 1893, p. 1(7)

28 NZ Herald, 21 August 1897, p.8(6)

29 NZ Herald, 9 October 1897, p. 8(5)

30 NZ Herald, 23 September 1899, p.8(3)
31 Auckland Star, 28 April 1900, p. 2(3)

82 NZ Herald, 18 October 1900, p.8(5)

33 Auckland Star, 11 August 1903, p.2

34 NZ Herald, 29 January 1903, p.4

35 NZ Herald, 3 February 1904, p.5

36 NZ Herald, 28 July 1906, p.4
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building, Wellesley Street West, * the King George V Hall at Mt Albert, *® and a hall at
Huntly, 1912; *° seven brick shops and dwellings, Kingsland, 1913; *° Methodist Church,
Dominion Road, 1915. ** He was honorary architect for the Green Bay Mission Church
(now Blockhouse Bay Baptist Church), 1917.4?

Refer to Appendix 1 for a full list of known buildings design by Arthur White.

Arthur White died, aged 55, at his home in Mt Albert in January 1920. ** His daughter
Lois White continued to live in the family home up until the 1950s.

’-‘mz "5 i 1k S SO : |
Figure 3: Showing Arthur Whites own house at 17 (formerly 5) Richardson Road.
Treep & Knight Architects 2017

Image source: Burgess

5.0 Physical description

SITE CONTEXT

Figure 4: Location plan showing extent of the original (1912) house highlighted. Figure 4: Location plan
showing the property highlighted. Source: Auckland Council Geomaps 2016

The house at 103 Richardson Road is on a north facing site close to the intersection of
Richardson Road and Owairaka Avenue.

37 Auckland Star, 13 November 1912, p7(4)

38 NZ Herald, 30 July 1912, p. 9

39 Maoriland Worker, 8 March 1912, p. 10

40 NZ Herald, 17 October 1913, p.12(4)

41 Auckland Star, 24 March 1915, p. 6

42 Auckland Star, 3 December 1917, p. 7

43 Obituary, Auckland Star, 28 January 1920 p.7
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Richardson Road runs across the lower slopes of Owairaka (Mt Albert) from west to east.
Owairaka Avenue runs across the eastern side of the maunga, from Mt Albert Road to
the angled intersection with Richardson Road. The property is set in line with Owairaka
Avenue and the house is a prominent townscape element in the view down Owairaka
Avenue towards Richardson Road.

The house site was subdivided off ‘Greenlee’, a small dairy farm owned by the Stewart
family.

In 1912 the house was one of few buildings in the area. At that time the character of the
area was at the beginning of the shift from rural to suburban. It is a substantial suburban
house, a precursor of the development that was to follow as the small farm holdings were
progressively subdivided and incorporated into the fabric of the city.

The house is set in a strong relationship with Richardson Road, with a generous front
yard. The property is the focus of the view down Owairaka Avenue to the intersection
with Richardson Road.

-~ o O i ¢ ; : . - . z
Figure 5: Showing ‘Greenlee’ in 1950s. Image source: White Aviation Collection Alexander Turnbull
Library

By 1954 (White’s Aviation photograph of the area above) the house stands out in a still
semi-rural environment. The property was larger at that time, incorporating the land now
occupied by 105A Richardson Road.

The property immediately to the south at this time, at 107A Richardson Road, was
developed, with a single storied bungalow house, similarly sited to the subject house.
The form and finishing details remain relatively intact, however the joinery has all been
replaced. The house features a substantial entry porch with a single concrete Tuscan
column.

The brick bungalow dairy at 109 Richardson Road was also present at that time, and the
Owairaka School, and the first houses in the state house development on Dunkirk
Avenue.

South of the dairy on Richardson Road is the Owairaka School. The school was
established by 1940. The original school buildings, that ran parallel to Richardson Road
in a block, have been replaced. A section of the northernmost block, the section angled
more to the north, has been retained with additions.

Behind the houses are the beginnings of the state housing development on Dunkirk
Avenue begun by 1940. Since 1954 further development has occurred and new houses
have been constructed between the properties on Richardson Road and the state
houses on Dunkirk Avenue.
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The property at 105A Richardson Road, subdivided off the subject site, has been
developed since 1950. The building on the property is a two storied, very plain gabled
1960s building, weatherboard clad on the upper floor set on a concrete block base. It is
set close to the road, well in front of the subject house. The front yard is bare,
predominantly driveway. The street frontage, and both side boundaries are defined by
plain vertical board fences. This building is divided into flats.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT BUILDING

Exterior: The house is a grand, architecturally designed, Edwardian transitional villa.
The form of the house is a variation on the corner bay form, a pyramidal hipped roof with
projecting gabled bays; it is a two-storied building with a wrapped around verandah
between the bays on the lower level and covered porches at the upper level. The
covered porches were intended to be outdoor sleeping porches. The entry at the lower
level is emphasized by a gabled porch.

The service areas are within a hip-roofed single storied side-wing at the south-east
corner of the building. The exterior walls are plastered brick-masonry, the gable ends
are finished in Queen Anne half-timbered panels set on a pediment moulding on dentil
brackets. Each of the upper gable ends features a horizontal multi-pane timber window.
The primary joinery elements are double hung windows set in pairs. The upper sashes
are divided into six lights, the lower sash is plain.

The verandah and entry porch feature solid fretted post brackets beneath a fine ladder
rail valence. The balustrade of the verandah is finished in weatherboard. The rafter
ends are expressed.

A discrete feature of the building, not obvious from the street, is the recessed secondary
porch on the eastern side of the building, adjoining the stair lobby. Here the wall of the
building steps in plan to create the porch. The roof over, at full height, is supported by
an arched opening.

The main form of the roof is a pyramidal hip, with gabled roofs out over the ‘bay’ elements
at the north east and the south west corners. The roof is finished in concrete tiles. The
roof forms of ‘porch’ elements to the side of the corner bays at the upper level have been
treated differently. The porch at the front of the house (beside the north-eastern bay) is
a hybrid of a low hip with a raked skillion roof sprung out of the main roof above eaves
level; the roof of the side porch (beside the southwest bay) is a smoother form, a hip
belled out from the main roof.

The chimneys are plain plastered, embellished only by simple banding and terracotta
flue caps.

Interior: The interior has not been inspected.

In plan the building, follows the villa typology, with a central hallway running in direct line
from the entry door at the front of the house. The main rooms of the house on the ground
floor are each side of the hallway within the main body of the building. The service wing,
off the south-eastern corner of the house was connected to the former kitchen, and
comprised, a walk-through scullery, with pantry to the side, an open porch with access
to a laundry, with a wood and coal store-room and a toilet at the southern end.

The main hallway was open to the grand stair to the upper floor. This wrap-around stair
is set back from the outside wall of the house, creating the recessed side entry porch.
The upper floor was divided to form four bedrooms off a central hall set off the stair, and
a single bathroom. The stair and hall are a single space.
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The Council property file provides some record of the changes made to the interior.
Without viewing the interior it is not possible to determine the effects of these changes.
From the plans the changes do not appear to have significantly altered the interior. Most
changes involve the introduction of partitions within existing rooms and, in some
instances on the ground floor, the removal of walls to enlarge existing spaces.
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MODIFICATIONS TO THE BUILDING
Exterior modifications
The original form and finishes of the house remain largely intact.

e The upper floor porches have been carefully infilled with casement windows. The
front porch was infilled in the 1940s.

¢ A large addition was constructed (1972) at the south west corner of the building,
to the side of the original service wing, out to the line of the face of the corner
bay.

¢ A number of shed buildings have been constructed in the rear yard.

Interior modifications

The following description of modifications is based on plans on the Council property file
submitted in 1990.

Lower Floor:
¢ Room names changed and functions shifted.
o Partition between the lobby and the stair for fire separation.
¢ A large opening between the ‘Living’ room and the ‘Sitting’ room (former Dining
Room).
e Hall shortened and incorporated into the ‘Dining’ room (former Kitchen).
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e A skylight over the Kitchen (former Scullery/Pantry).
e Partition in the lobby outside the Laundry to form a shower cubicle.

Upper Floor:
¢ Bathroom subdivided to form a separate toilet.
e South-west bedroom partitioned to form a bathroom space.

CHRONOLOGY OF CHANGE

Source: Auckland Council Property File

1912/13
1941
1942/43
1942
1945
1948

1950
1954
1961

1962

1962

1971/72

1974
1990

1990

2001
2006

Construction of the house for Mrs Stewart.

Garage rebuilt following a fire.

Construction of a Dairy in the rear yard.

Upper Floor: ‘kitchenette’ fitted into north-east porch.

Alterations to the laundry/lobby area in the rear wing to form a ‘kitchenette’.
Application by Mrs Leah Stewart to convert the building into two flats
(address at that time 29 Richardson Road).

Application by Mrs Leah Stewart to ‘glass-in verandah’.

Bath removed.

Application by Motherhood of Man to use the lower floor as a daycare and
the upper floor as an independent flat.

Application by Motherhood of Man to construct a fire escape from the upper
floor, and to ‘remove internal partitions to enlarge the play area of the day
nursery’.

Subdivision of the property reducing the overall area of the property, creating
the property at 105 Richardson Road.

Extension to the side of the rear wing for Motherhood of Man, to form a ‘cot
room’.

Skyline garage constructed in the rear yard.

Fire wall on the lower floor to separate the stair from the hall.

Skylight fitted into the ‘Kitchen’ (former Pantry/Scullery).

Plans show; Lower Floor: hall shortened, the kitchen area changed to
become the dining room, subdivision of the lobby outside the laundry to fit a
shower.

Upper Floor: Bathroom subdivided to form a separate toilet, south west
bathroom subdivided to form a bathroom within the space.

Two-bedroom relocatable house constructed at the south-east corner of the
site.

Wood-burning stove installed.

Plans submitted to Council showing the internal subdivision of the building
including division of the bedrooms to increase the number of beds and to
provide additional bathroom facilities. The plan also shows a partition within
the north-west bedroom upstairs to create an angled corridor to access the
enclosed porch.

KEY FEATURES

e The orginal form and finishes of the building.
e The visual relationship of the building to Richardson Road.
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6.0 Comparative analysis

Many of the grand architectural homes of this period, 1905-1919, in New Zealand are in
the ‘transitional style’, a style that generally retained the forms and scale of the Victorian
villa, with plainer decorative features, influenced by the bungalow style and the
increasingly popular Arts and Crafts style. It was the dominant architectural style of the
period leading up to the First World War.

This was the end period of the villa style**. By the following decade after the First World
War almost all architectural grand homes, particularly the two storied homes, were Arts
and Crafts style (English Cottage style) with a few in Spanish Mission or plain Italianate
Palazzo style. The common housing style of this period, the bungalow style, was also
used by architects. This style did not easily lend itself to two storied structures, and
hence was not a style used for showcase homes.

The villa style, of which the transitional phase (c.1905-1914) is considered to be the end
of that typology of house, underwent many stylistic and fashion changes through its
period as the dominant house typology in New Zealand (c.1860-1914). These stylistic
shifts are well expressed by the range of surviving grand homes in Mt Albert.

The house at 103 Richardson Road represents the shift from the formal grand Victorian
villa houses to the less formal large Arts and Crafts style homes that followed. The house
has elements of both these architectural styles and represents the evolution of design of
grand homes in the early part of the 20™ century.

GRAND HOUSES IN MT ALBERT

The first of the grand homes in Mt Albert, Alberton, 100 Mt Albert Road, Mt Albert
constructed in 1863 (ID 01736), Ferndale, 1865, 830 New North Road, Mt Albert (item
01762) and Allendale, 1 Mt Albert Road, (item 01734) were built in the 1860s. These
buildings retain steeply pitched original forms, overlaid by later additions and
embellishments. Alberton, the most significant surviving grand home of the area, was
transformed in 1873 by the addition of an elaborate arcaded verandah with turret
pavilions at each end, designed by architect Matthew Henderson.*®

The grand Mt Albert homes of the 1880’s and 1890’s are more classical in style, clearer
in mass and form. These include the Winstone house, 29 Stilwell Road, Mt Albert (item
01874), Oakfield 1880, 9 Oakfield Ave, Mt Albert (item 01772), ‘Epworth’1878, 4 Alexis
Avenue, Mt Albert (01597). These houses are very formal and were built as showpiece
homes on the large residential estates created at that time.

THE TRANSITIONAL VILLA

By 1912, when the house at 103 Richardson Road was designed by White, the villa style
had morphed from the Italianate into the less embellished transitional style, going
through different phases of fashion as it evolved. The overall forms of transitional villas
and the plan arrangements employed tend to follow the earlier villa style; the details and
finishes are more frequently taken from the bungalow typology and to an extent are also
influenced by the emerging Arts and Crafts style. The defining elements are the exposed
rafter ends, the shaped boards (not fretted) as verandah post brackets, and a general
simplification of detail.

Jeremy Salmond in his book ‘Old New Zealand Houses’ refers to the effects of these
changes on the villa style as ‘more the thickening of age than adornment’. The
transitional form of the villa is nevertheless of great interest in itself.

44 P.182 Salmond, Jeremy: Old New Zealand Houses 1800-1940, pub: Reed Methuen 1986
45 Auckland Council Research Summary for ‘Alberton’, Lisa Truttman, 14 April 2008
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As described by Tony Barnes in his paper ‘Translation in the Transitional: Examining
Innovations in the Design of Auckland’s “Transitional Houses™ published by SAHANZ in
2014, the transitional style was the style of choice in this period, not only a builders’ style
but, as demonstrated by this house, also a style used by experienced architects. These
buildings represent the fluidity of the period and the ready adaptation of new ideas to suit
the changing lifestyle at that time. This is particularly evident in the incorporation of the
sleeping porches at the upper floor level as ‘sleeping out’ had become very common as
a healthy lifestyle choice, throughout the western world, in the early years of the 20"
century.*®

Barnes also notes the parallel between the transitional style and the Australian
Federation Style, a very valid comparison as this highlights the variety of approaches to
design covered by the term ‘transitional’, very closely related to the variety of style
encompassed by the term ‘Federation’ in Australia. Barnes notes that: ‘Federation
includes ‘Federation Queen Anne’, ‘Federation Bungalow’, ‘Federation Arts and Crafts’
and ‘Federation Arts and Crafts”.

GRAND ARTS AND CRAFTS STYLED HOUSES

The parallel styles, the bungalow and arts and crafts styles were introduced to New
Zealand in the late nineteenth and early twentieth century. In the first years of the
twentieth century architects such as Samuel Hurst Seagar, James Chapman-Taylor,
Gerald Jones were introducing the less formal Bungalow & Arts and Crafts styles to New
Zealand.*” The arts and craft style enabled a far greater range of individuality than the
more formal villa style, hence buildings of this type have a greater range of forms and
architectural character. This had a substantial influence on the architecture of the period,
including an influence on the ‘transitional’ style.

The Arts and Crafts style, also called the English Cottage style, became the preferred
style used by most architects for grand homes following the First World War. Many fine
examples of the style had been constructed before 1914. Auckland architects Bamford
and Pierce, Geo Goldsboro, Roy Binney and Wellington architect James Chapman
Taylor, all inspired by the work of English architects such as Philip Webb and Edwin
Lutyens, had a number of Arts and Crafts styled houses built in Auckland by 1914.4®
Some of these projects were published in “New Zealand Building Progress” magazine
and would have been familiar to the architects of the day.

Examples are:
o Waione, ‘The Butterfly House’, 22 Domett Ave Epsom, Bamford and Pierce
(1907/8).
Ngahere, 74 Mountain Road, Epsom. Bamford + Pierce (1908).
Bishopscourt (Nelligan House), 12 St Stephens Ave, Bamford + Pierce (1909).
Kinder House, 1 St Georges Bay Road, Bamford + Pierce (1910).
Coolangatta 464 Remuera Road, Bamford + Pierce (1912).
Stansfield House 30 Arney Road Bamford + Pierce (1912).
Goldsboro House 66 Gillies Ave (1913).
Spicer House 24 Mainstone Road (1913/14).
Guines Court, 532 Remuera Road, Binney (1914).

46 n.18-19 ‘the Californian Bungalow in Australia’, Graeme Butler, pub Thomas C. Lothian, Melbourne 1992
47 P.12 ‘the Bungalow in New Zealand’ Jeremy Ashford, pub. Penguin Books NZ, 1994
48 p.49 ‘Coolangatta — a Homage’', Peter Macky with Paul Waite, Livadia publishers, 2010
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EXAMPLES OF SIMILAR BUILDINGS ON THE SCHEDULE

The following houses are grand scaled, two storied, dwellings. The examples cover a
range of periods and hence styles and provide the architectural context for the building
at 103 Richardson Road. (Refer to Appendix 2 — Supplementary Research for further
information).

Former Caughey Home ‘Rahiri’. 15 McLean St, Mt Albert. Constructed 1888,
additions ¢.1900 (SCHEDULE ID 01728)

This house represents a high point in the development of the large residential estates on
and around Mt Albert.

The Caughey home ‘Rahiri’ was most likely constructed for Andrew Caughey following
his purchase of the site in 1888. This building is of particular interest as the additions
and alterations to the building that gave it its remarkable Queen Anne tower and
verandahs were designed by Arthur White, around 1900, for the Caughey family. The
house demonstrates the less constrained approach of the late nineteenth and early
twentieth century, as taken by White a decade before designing 103 Richardson Road.
The design has similarities to the Stewart House (‘Greenlee’); both utilise the corner bay
form, both are two storied, both have an underlying villa typology.

White designed the additions to this house ten years before he designed the Stewart
house. When compared the two houses clearly share design elements and, in
comparison, they express the shifts in architectural style that occurred over that time, in
particular the changing approach of White to the design of this type of residence.

Former Sergeant’s Cottage: Newmarket Police Station. 3 Middleton Road,
Newmarket. Constructed 1909 (PROPOSAL 1222)

The Sergeant’s Cottage at 1 Middleton Road is a two-storied transitional styled house,
most likely designed by the architectural division of the Public Works Department,
headed at that time by architect John Campbell. The building has a simple rectilinear
form capped by a pyramidal hipped roof, enlivened by the projecting front room bay
finished in a gabled roof, and the smaller gable over the upper floor window within the
main roof. The large gable end features hit and miss boards at the face of the barge,
and fretted brackets. The wall is recessed at the entry door and covered by a small
sloping porch roof. Many public buildings of this period are described as Edwardian
Baroque, a reference to the mannerist decorative treatment favoured by Campbell. On
the Sergeant’s Cottage this is an undernote rather than a dominant aspect of the design,
subtly expressed through the bound column detail on the plastered window facings.

Former Hannah House, 11 Arney Road, Remuera. Constructed 1915 (SCHEDULE
ID 01601)

Designed by the architect Gerald Jones for Mrs Hanna a member of the Nicols family,
who owned the land including the adjoining property at 9 Arney Road. It is an early and
very fine example of Gerald Jones’ use of the Arts and Crafts style, with its elegant bell-
form sweeping roof falling away from the two-storied central gable.

This building demonstrates the shift towards highly designed and crafted individual
homes, that became the dominant style of building for the wealthy from this time through
until the second world war. This early example represents a high point of this approach
to design.

This house demonstrates the new direction for this type of house in Auckland from that

time, and fits with similar Arts and Crafts styled houses of that period, in particular the
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forerunners designed by Bamford and Pierce and built before 1912. (Refer to the
previous list).

Formerly ‘Bromsgrove’ 15 Bassett Road, Remuera. Constructed 1926 (SHEDULE
ID 01606)

This house, designed by architect H. Clinton Savage for Mrs Alice Court (widow of the
Auckland merchant George Court), is a large stucco finished grand home that, whilst
largely arts and crafts in style retains some of the characteristics of the transitional style.
The house has a clear differentiation between the lower and the upper floor, whereas
most arts and crafts style buildings blur the shifts in levels by use of cascading roof forms
and the incorporation of upper floor space within the main roof. The formal frontage to
the street with its hipped roof mass enlivened by projecting gables has much in common
with the Stewart house, however this house is grander in scale and in plan has shifted
away from the villa typology.

7.0 Significance criteria
(a) Historical

The place reflects important or representative aspects of national, regional or local
history, or is associated with an important event, person, group of people or idea or early
period of settlement within the nation, region or locality.

The place represents the shift between rural and urban use in the Mt Albert area and
was among the first of the suburban developments on Richardson Road. The property
was formed by subdivision of the small farm; Allotment 53 of the suburbs of Titirangi.
Initially the place retained a relationship with the farm as Mrs Stewart’s son continued to
farm on the original property.

The place is directly linked to the Stewart and Bray families, both prominent families in
the Mt Albert area from the mid-nineteenth century. The Bray family first purchased the
property in 1855. John Stewart, married to Mary, daughter of George and Elizabeth
Bray, purchased the property around 1875, to add to his landholdings along Richardson
Road. The change of ownership followed the unfortunate death of George Bray and
another of his son-in-laws, Walton Pell, in a quarry incident on Mt Albert.*°

This area was closely associated at that time with the Stewart family and for a period
around 1880 Richardson Road was known as Stewart’s Road.*® (The Stewart Road that
comes off Richardson Road to the west of the property, was formed by later subdivision
of the Stewart farm.)

‘Greenlee’ was built for Mrs Mary Stewart, the widow of John Stewart.

Following her death in 1914, the property became co-owned by her sons John and David.
David married Leah Hodgson in 1916. In 1927 David and Leah were granted tenancy
for life. David died in 1930. In 1936 lots 8 + 9 of the subdivision of Allotment 53 were
conveyed to Leah Stewart. The house remained in the Stewart family until her death in
1953.

The house represents the grand style of home favoured by the settler families of Mt
Albert, and relates to the grand homes of the area, in particular the Victorian estates
such as ‘Alberton’ and ‘Rahiri’.

49 Lisa Truttman summary: Southern Cross newspaper, 8 May 1874, p.2
50 Lisa Truttman summary: 103 Richardson. Report on the Mt Albert road Board meeting, NZHerald May
1884, p.6
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In the mid 20" century sections and access-ways were subdivided off the property to
enable further residential development.

The place demonstrates the cultural and economic changes in the area from early
settlement through to the present day. It has had many uses, all residential; it has been
subdivided to form two flats, it has been used as a facility for young mothers and their
babies, and, most recently, has been a mental healthcare facility.

Overall the place is of considerable local historical significance as a place associated
with the early stages of European settlement of the area.

The place is of moderate historical significance at a regional level through its
association with the Motherhood of Man organisation, 1953 -1986, and as one of the first
places in Auckland to be used to house mental health patients within the community from
the mid 1980s to the present day.

(b) Social

The place has a strong or special association with, or is held in high esteem by, a
particular community or cultural group for its symbolic, spiritual, commemorative,
traditional or other cultural value.

It would appear that ‘Greenlee’ is a marker in the local environment, that the community
identifies with. This is most likely due to the fact that the house is highly visible from the
streetscape.

The place helps to define community identity in the Mt Albert area as it is one of the
anchor-stones of early suburban development in the area. The place fits within the
scattered group of large houses in the area that represent the early stages of residential
growth around Mt Albert.

The place has moderate social significance at a local level.

(c) Mana whenua

The place has a strong or special association with, or is held in high esteem by, mana
whenua for its symbolic, spiritual, commemorative, traditional or other cultural value.

This assessment does not address the significance of this place to Mana whenua.
(d) Knowledge

The place has potential to provide knowledge through scientific or scholarly study or to
contribute to an understanding of the cultural or natural history of the nation, region or
locality.

As a property developed after 1900, the place is unlikely to provided substantial
information on past human activity through archaeological or other scientific
investigation. This is compounded by the changes made on the grounds of the property,
the creation of carparks and the building of ancillary buildings in the yard.

The place is an important local benchmark, as it represents the development of grand
houses in the area in the second decade of the twentieth century, and provides a
reference point of comparison when considering the remaining early grand homes of the
area as a group. Itis a locally rare example of its type.

The place has limited value as a research or teaching site.
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The place has considerable local potential to educate the public through publication and
promotion as a place associated with the growth and consolidation of Mt Albert as a
suburb.

The place is one of very few grand transitional houses in the area, and as such is locally
rare, unique and possibly endangered.

Over all the place has moderate local knowledge significance

(e) Technological

The place demonstrates technical accomplishment, innovation or achievement in its
structure, construction, components or use of materials.

The house is well built but not technologically innovative.
Over all the place has little technological significance

(f) Physical attributes

The place is a notable or representative example of a type, design or style, method of
construction, craftsmanship or use of materials or the work of a notable architect,
designer, engineer or builder.

‘Greenlee’ was designed in 1912 by Arthur Herbert White. White was very active as an
architect in Auckland and had a particularly strong relationship with the Mt Albert
community as he was a member of the Wesleyan Church. White designed many of the
church buildings in the area, as well as commercial buildings for the Wesleyan
community elsewhere in Auckland. White also carried out the Queen Anne style
additions and alterations to the Caughey family home ‘Rahiri’. The house designed by
White for his family at 5 Richardson Road (now #17) has a strong resemblance to
‘Greenlee’. It is a relatively intact two-storied Edwardian villa.

The place is an excellent example of the work of Arthur White, an architect closely
associated with the Mt Albert area and with the Wesleyan Church, and a regionally
important architectural practitioner. It demonstrates his approach to domestic design at
that time, and is a rare example of his residential work.

Greenlee’ is one of the grand historic homes of Mt Albert. It is a good example of an
architecturally designed grand home of the early 20" century period. The house
represents the ‘transitional’ villa period, and embodies design features that express the
design approach, and construction methods of that period, including the ‘sleeping porch’
elements on the upper floor. These a form of outdoor room popular at the beginning of
the twentieth century when outdoor sleeping was considered to be healthy. The porches
have been infilled but remain recognisable.

The place represents the last form of the villa style as it adapted to the influence of the
bungalow and arts and crafts style.

The place is notable in the area as a building that established the pattern of development
of Richardson Road.

The slopes of Owairaka/Mt Albert are a definable geographical area. The surviving grand
houses on the slopes of Owairaka/Mt Albert represent the pattern of development of the
area, the shift from large estates of the 1870s-1890s through to the suburban subdivision
that followed in the first half of the twentieth century. Where they remain visible these
places stand out.
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‘Greenlee’ has considerable local significance for its physical attributes

(9) Aesthetic

The place is notable or distinctive for its aesthetic, visual, or landmark qualities.

‘Greenlee’ is set at the intersection of Richardson Road and Owairaka Avenue, opposite
Owairaka Avenue. The end of Owairaka Avenue frames the house in the view down the
street. The house has a considerable presence on Richardson Road as it is the largest
house on the street, formal in appearance and clearly set in relation to the road. That
relationship is enhanced by the undeveloped front yard. A screen of trees on the front
boundary has recently been removed.

The place is a local visual landmark.

The place is set in line with Owairaka Avenue and is seen down the street as part of a
framed view. The view towards the place down Owairaka Avenue is an important local
view.

The original house is largely unchanged as seen from the street. It has notable aesthetic
appeal as seen from the street as the house has an open front yard, this openness
reinforces the overall aesthetic relationship of the building with its site and setting as
seen from the street.

The place exemplifies the aesthetic taste of the mid Edwardian period. It is an excellent
example of that aesthetic taste.

The place has strong visual appeal in the immediate neighbourhood. The place has
considerable local aesthetic significance.

(h) Context

The place contributes to or is associated with a wider historical or cultural context,
streetscape, townscape, landscape or setting.

The place represents the early twentieth century phase of the development of residential
estates around Owairaka/Mt Albert. Together with the remaining larger houses on the
slopes of Owairaka this place provides physical evidence of that pattern of historic
development.

The place has collective value as it is one of the few surviving grand houses in the area,
and a rare Edwardian example of that type of development. Many of these places are
scheduled heritage items.

The original site, setting and context remains open as viewed from the street. The
original landscaping and garden features have been changed to form carparking areas.

The openness of the front yard and the western side yard contributes to the meaning
and value of the place as the original form and appearance of the building remain visible
from the public domain.

The house has contextual value as it is one of very few remaining early houses on the
street and was a key building in the early subdivision of Richardson Road from farm to
suburb, defining the pattern of development that was to follow.
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The place contributes to the character and sense of place of the local area.

The house at 103 Richardson Road is part of the disparate group of grand houses on
the slopes of Owairaka/Mt Albert. These places together demonstrate the early period of
grand residential development in the area. As a group these houses exemplify the shifts
in the cultural life of this very important area.

The place has considerable local significance in this context.

8.0 Statement of significance

‘Greenlee’ has considerable local historical significance as a place that is directly
associated with the Bray and Stewart families, early settler families in the area. The
house, constructed in 1912/13 has further historical value as it represents the beginnings
of suburban growth in the area, and the role played by the larger landholders in the area
in that change. ‘Greenlee’ has moderate local social significance as it is, as stated, one
of the anchor-stones of early suburban development in Owairaka/Mt Albert and as such
is a marker in the local environment that the local community identifies with.

The house demonstrates the domestic lifestyle of its time, including the once popular
domestic practise of ‘sleeping out’ as the house was designed with sleeping porches on
the upper floor. ‘Greenlee’ has considerable knowledge significance at a local level and
the study of this place has the potential to add significantly to the understanding of the
development of this area. ‘Greenlee’ has some knowledge significance as a place that
represents the transitional villa period, and has design elements that express domestic
spatial design and lifestyle of that period.

‘Greenlee’ has considerable regional significance as a notable, and rare, example of the
domestic design-work of Arthur White, a regionally significant architect who practised
from 1890 until his death in 1920. White was a neighbour at the time the house was
designed; he lived at 5 Richardson Road with his family from 1911. ‘Greenlee’ has
considerable local aesthetic appeal. The building, barely changed on its public frontage
and clearly visible from the public domain as the front yard remains open, contributes
significantly to the local area. It typifies the aesthetic taste of the mid Edwardian period
and is a good example of its type regionally.

‘Greenlee’ is a local landmark, through its scale and location, and it is framed by the end
of Owairaka Avenue in the view down that street. ‘Greenlee’ contributes considerably to
the local context as it is an important element in the historic development of the area,
and retains its relationship to the surrounding context. The Stewart family to an extent
created the local context through subdivision of the original allotment and other
surrounding properties that they once owned.

‘Greenlee’ still stands out in the local context. The house is part of the wider context as
it is one of the historic grand homes of the area and fits within the diverse grouping of
grand homes on the slopes of Owairaka/Mt Albert. These places range from the remnant
houses of the large estates; ‘Alberton’ 1873 (01736) , ‘Ferndale’ 1876 (01762) and
‘Rahiri’ (01728) through to the interwar properties on suburban sites. ‘Greenlee’
represents the mid-Edwardian period and the shift from the villa typology through to the
later Arts and Crafts styled houses exemplified in the area by the Chapman Taylor
designed ‘Valhalla’ 1926 (01905) at 10 Woodward Road.
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9.0 Extent of the place for scheduling

7N

DN I' o\ >
Figure 7: Aerial view indicating the extent of place recommended for scheduling, cross hatched.
The original 1912 house is shaded purple. Exclusions are shaded yellow.

Extent of Place

The identified extent of the place for scheduling is ‘the area that is integral to the ‘function,
meaning and relationships of the place’. The identified extent of the place for scheduling
includes the building (as identified in Figure 7) and surrounds on Lot 2 DP 52114.

The area forward of the house in particular, is important for views of the ornate front
elevation and one of the side elevations of the residence (as seen from the streetscape).
The land forms part of what was the sites original setting. Areas to the western side and
southern rear form part of its wider setting. It is a sensitive interface where future changes
and/or development needs carefully consider its relationship with the historic residence.

Exclusions: It is recommended that the following elements are identified as formal
exclusions:

The interior of the building
The addition at the north west corner of the house
All accessory buildings on the property.

10.0 Recommendations

Based on the preceding evaluation, it is considered that the house formerly known as
‘Green Lee’ at 103 Richardson Road, Mount Albert, Auckland, meets the threshold for
scheduling as a Historic Heritage Place: Category B.

The place is considered to be of considerable local heritage significance in relation to
the following values: (a) Historical, (f) Physical attributes, (g) Aesthetic value, (h) Context.
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Overall the house at 5 Richardson Road, Owairaka is considered to be of
considerable local heritage value.

Section 9.0 above describes the extent of the place for scheduling.

11.0 Table of Historic Heritage Values

Significance Criteria | Value* (None, Little, | Context (Local,

(A-H) Moderate, Considerable, | Regional, National,
Exceptional) International)

A- Historical Considerable Local

B- Social Moderate Local

C- Mana Whenua n/a n/a

D- Knowledge Moderate Local

E- Technological Little

F- Physical Attributes Considerable Local

G- Aesthetic Considerable Local

H- Context Considerable Local

*Levels of significance or value:

Exceptional:

value(s)/significance is essential.

Considerable:

of great importance and

value(s)/significance is very important.

Moderate: of some

importance and

value(s)/significance is desirable.

Little: of limited importance and interest.

None or n/a: none identified

interest;

interest;

retention of the

retention of the
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12.0 Overall Significance

Place Name and/or ‘Greelee’ (former)
Description
103 Richardson Road
Owairaka, Auckland

Verified Location Based on the NZTM details on the GIS viewer this is NZTM
1752839, 5915438.

Verified Legal Lot 2 DP 52114

Description

Category B

Primary Feature The original 1912 house — refer to Figure 7

Known Heritage A F, G H

Values

Extent of Place Refer to planning maps

Exclusions Interior of the building, addition at the north west corner of the

house, accessory buildings.

Additional Controls -
for Archaeological
Sites or Features

Place of Maori -
Interest or
Significance

13.0 Other Matters

During the course of this evaluation Arthur White’s own house at 17 Richardson Road,
Owairaka was identified. We consider that this building may have significant heritage
value and warrants being added to the places of interest list held by the Auckland Council
Heritage Unit. The house may warrant additional research and evaluation at a future
date.

Authors: Graeme Burgess & Lilli Knight.
Date: 23 February 2016.
Reviewer: Cara Francesco (Principal Specialist Built Heritage Policy, Auckland Council).

Date: 17 February 2017.
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Appendix 1: Supporting Historical Research

THE SITE

Figure 8: Map of the area from 1863. Shows allotments in an area from Westmere to Whau Creek to
Manukau Harbour. Priestly was the first known publican of the Whau Hotel, and was only there from April to
October of 1863, also Greytown was for sale in that year.Source: Sir George Grey Special Collections,
Auckland Libraries, NZ Map 4178
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Figure 9: 3 Sep 1920. Looking south, south west from Mount Albert over Owairaka, the Manukau Harbour
and Blockhouse Bay and Green Bay (background left) and Waitakere Ranges (background right) with a
group of houses (left) a two-storeyed house (right) and a paddock covered with large rocks in the foreground.
Image source: Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 4-8424

Frgure 10 3 ep 1920 Panoramrc vrewlookrng west south west from Mount AIbert showing Owarraka in
the background. Image source: Sir George Grey Special Collections, Auckland Libraries, 4-4421

Frgure 11 Aerral photograph taken by Whrtes Avratron 24 March 1950 Image source Owarraka Auckland.
Whites Aviation Ltd: Photographs. Ref: WA-24195-G. Alexander Turnbull Library, Wellington, New Zealand.
http://natlib.govt.nz/records/23082698
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Figure 13: 1940 aerial photograph of the property. Image source: Auckland Council GIS Viewer 2016
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Figure 15: 2006 aerial photograph of theproperty. Image source: Auckland Council GIS Viewer 201
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NEWSPAPER ARCHIVES

HAMMAT: '1SFMAGIA PRI™IS PICEM COPF.

CTEWART On September 5. at her resi-
dence. Greenlee, Richardson Road., Mouant
Albert, Mary, the dearly-heloved wile of the
e John Stewart; age T

The funeral wi!l lsave the ahove remdence
tor Waikumete io-morrow (Tueaday), ‘: 2%
r=m

DEATHS. New Zealand Herald, Volume LI, Issue 15707, 7 September 1914
Mrs., Mary Stewart, widow of the late
Afr John Stewart, of (ireenleea Farm, Mt
Albert. has died at the advanced age of
0 wears

Auckland Star, Volume 5(LV, Issue 222, 17 September 1914

WS, YiCLOrin =St ¢+ 1N

HCIUSE 4 rooms to Let, No. 29, Graftoh
Rd.; rent, 25/ —Apply by letter of
olhernise to J, Johmson, “Greeulee,” Rich-
ardson Rd., Mt Albert, -]
TTIDRRE. 4 roome farndshed In 10 sk d
Page 2 Advertisements Column 5 Auckland Star, Volume XLV, Issue 234, 1 October 1914

CTEWART.—On December 1.{‘-, 1030, :1*.;_1113
regidence, Greenlee, 00, Richardson Inad,
Mount Albert, David .‘\ll“.\.Il;HIL‘T', dearly
heloved husband of Teah Stewart ;111(!
voungest son of the late John and Mary
Stewirt, and  son-in-law of  Mr, A
Tlodg~en, Selwyn Street, Onehungad; aged
30 vears, LFuneral will leave his Tate
residence at o p.am. to:nmrrnw (\\;a}f]nvsi
day}, for 1\':111{11me_to.(,vn!vl'er},'. TFricnds
please accept 1his intimation.

DEATHS Auckland Star, Volume LXI, Issue 297, 16 December 1930

STEWART.—0On December 16, 1930, ag_]ns
regidence. titeenien, a9, Richardson Road,
Mount Albert, David  Alexander, dearly
heloved husband of T.eah Stewart :mtI‘
voungest son of the late John and Mary
Stewatt, and  son-in-law of  Nr. A
Tlodg~on, Selwyn Streel, Onehungza agml
30 vears. Funeral will leave his late
residence at o p.a. ru‘-nm;'mw (\\;;.:flnvs-.
day), for “'ﬂ‘ll(ll’n"li?l(‘.(_.l‘ln'l*l'ﬂl'},'. Fricnds
please accept 1his intimation.

DEATHS Auckland Star, Volume LXI, Issue 297, 16 December 1930

- TIO) ULMMEL ; JOWO LU TTILAILE RUTSLT.

I EIFERS (2), 1 licht red and 1 yellow,
strayed from- Richardson Rd., Mt.

Roskill; reward.—Apply Stewart,: reen-
len Dairy Farm, Richardson Rd., IMt.
Albert. . : .

Page 1 Advertisements Column 2 New Zealand Herald, Volume LXIX, Issue 21072, 5 January 1932
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LIVESTOCK FOR SALE,
(‘1001) House Cow, just calved; £4.—
X Apply Greenles Farm, Richardson Rd.,
Mt Albert. 18

Page 1 Advertisements Column 8 Auckland Star, Volume LXIII, Issue 195, 18 August 1932

Wellington 81.

“‘E-NDI_:}RS for Ploughing and Discing ap-
- proximately 5 Acres of Goree, roots to

be heaped and burned.—Apply Greenles

Dairy Farm, Richardson Rds, MMt. Albert,

mo HOME . RITTT.NERAN
Page 20 Advertisements Column 2 New Zealand Herald, Volume LXXI, Issue 21719, 7 February 1934

Ceem e

A DULUIUS; LUULUD, LUyDd, LTELUTIE.

JARM HAND WANTED IMMEDIATELY
Experienced with Machines,
Driver's Licence Essential.
Good Home and Conditiona.

Apply,
GLASGOW,
C/o Greenles Farm,
59 Richardson Rd., Mt, Albert,

™A DA TTADII TITAXTTN
Page 1 Advertisements Column 5 New Zealand Herald, Volume LXXVI, Issue 23251, 21 January 1939
children).—A.1 Reg.. ’aimerston Bldgs.
JACHINE Milker wanted utrgently; m
i\]_ h'u- able to drive truck.——-A;)glyl g asml)l‘it
Greenlee Daity Farm, 59 Richardson Rd.,
Mt. Albert, .
NTAN, voung, sheep, general, good_ cond-
Page 1 Advertisements Column 6 New Zealand Herald, Volume LXXVI, Issue 23307, 28 March 1939

— e

‘ TARNING. — Shooting Definitely not

allawed on Geeenlee Estate, Richardeon
Rd , Mt. Albert Persons caught trespnss-
ing will be provecnted.

(Signed) LEAH STEWART.

Auckland Star, Volume LXX, Issue 103, 4 May 1939

HOUSES (UNFURNISHED) TO LET
JREE HOUSE, milk, also lihoral remuncra- | |
tion, to Couple, willing to look after 2
Farm Hands; - closo Clty.~—Apply
66 RICHARDSON RO;\_D.

M ALBERT.
Page 1 Advertisements Column 5 New Zealand Herald, Volume LXXVI, Issue 23438, 30 August 1939

N I S ISR VY ) J.1iL.

Slight  damage lt;o two garages, a
horse box and a dairy on a property
at 55 Richardson Road, Mount Albert,
owned and oceupied by Mrs. L. Stewart,
was caused by a fire which broke ou{
jnst after ‘two o'clock in the after-
noon. Flames from a rubbish fire
spread to the surrounding grass and
to the buildings, The fire wus attended
by engines from the Mount Eden and
Mount Roskill stations, and no diffi-
culty was experienced in extingnishing
1.

GRASS FIRES CONTINUE New Zealand Herald, Volume LXXVIII, Issue 23861, 11 January 1941

EunT amevs x18§

MILE ROUNDSMAN WANTED — Experience pre=
ferred Start ummediately Essentisl service.
Apnly mornings
35. RICHARDSON ROAD., MT. ALBERT.
Phone 41-711

x14

Page 1 Advertisements Column 8 Auckland Star, Volume LXXIII, Issue 217, 14 September 1942
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HISTORICAL SUMMARY

Summary: 103 Richardson Road, Mt Albert
Formerly “Greenlee.”
Author: Lisa J Truttman, 12 October 2016

The building is currently sited on part of the 56 acre Allotment 53 of the Parish of Titirangi,
originally conveyed by Crown Grant to Clement Partridge in June 1845 in exchange for a land
claim totalling 140 acres elsewhere, to the equivalent value of £140. 5 The allotment came to be
owned by Thomas Bray in 1855, 52 as part of a larger landholding along what was to become
Richardson Road. The Bray family arrived in Taranaki in 1841, but moved to Auckland by 1844.
There, Thomas Bray purchased land, initially near the Three Kings area 52 (where he raised
cattle), 4 then he and his sons George and William purchased Allotments 58 (1850), 52 (1852)
with 57 (1853) and finally 53 (1855), all in the Parish of Titirangi 5. In today’s terms this farm
would have stretched from between the Oakley Creek and New North Road in the north-west
then down across New North Road to all the land between Richardson Road and the creek, to
approximately where Richardson Road meets Hendon Avenue, and including today’s Alan Wood
Reserve.

By 1863, Thomas Bray had a business at Newton, selling “boards, scantling and joists”, %6 so it is
likely he began to lease at least part of his farm by that stage. It is documented that by 1867, Bray
had leased Allotments 52 and 53 to John Fletcher. 57 Fletcher lived on the combined property at
that time.58 Bray then leased allotments 52 and 53 to his son George in 1870. 5° George Bray
died in May 1874, along with his father-in-law Walton Pell, when the face of the gravel pit at the
summit of Owairaka gave way and buried them. % In October 1875, Thomas Bray put both
Allotments 52 and 53 up for sale, the advertisements describing them as:

“ ... eight or nine paddocks, all clear of stone and laid down in grass ... There is a GOOD SIX-
ROOMED STONE HOUSE, Dairy and Outbuildings ...” 6

Whether this house was on or close to the site of the building at 103 Richardson Road today is
not known.

It appears that Elizabeth Bray, George Bray’s widow, surrendered the lease her husband had
back to his father Thomas in December 1875. 52 Her son-in-law John Stewart purchased the
property around the same time, 63 and applied for a certificate of title in May 1882. 4 This was
finally granted, after a considerable search for missing documents, in August 1895. % Richardson
Road, from c.1884, was popularly known as Stewart’s Road for a time. % By 1891, but likely from
before, Stewart’s farm was known as “Green Lee’s farm”, 7 or Greenlee. He died on 23 June
1895, aged 62. 8

His widow Mary Stewart continued to live on the farm, next to her son David Alexander Stewart.
69 In 1912 she commissioned architect Arthur Henry White to design a two-storey brick residence.
0 This appears to have been completed in early 1913; an advertisement placed in the
newspapers by building contractors Brookes Brothers for “plastering and painting” tenders for “a

51 3G 513, as included in Application file 1917, ABWN A1825 D16741, Archives New Zealand

52 2M 741, as noted in Application file 1917

%3 Sarah Jane Laurenson, The Bray Saga, 2001

54 Advertisement, New Zealander, 27 May 1848

% Deeds Index for Parish of Titirangi, LINZ

%6 Southern Cross, repeated advertisements, 1863

5" MAC 104 Item 1 p.4, Mt Albert Highway District rate books, Auckland Council Archives (online database)
%8 Testimony given in court, NZ Herald, 22 October 1868, p.4

59 25D 155, as noted in Application file 1917

60 Southern Cross 8 May 1874, p. 2

61 NZ Herald, 19 October 1875, p 4 (1)

62 21M.8, as noted in Application file 1917

63 21M.8, Deeds Index 16A.737, LINZ records, BAJZ 23662A1660/864a R22764247, Archives New Zealand
& Application file 1917, ABWN A1825 D16741, Archives New Zealand

% NA 75/132, LINZ records

% Report on Mt Albert Road Board meeting, NZ Herald, 8 May 1884, p6

57 Notice, NZ Herald, 27 June 1891, p. 1(7)

% NZ Herald, 24 June 1895, p. 5

5 Wises Directory, 1910, p. 124

0 Auckland Council property file. In 1948, the residence was described in a building permit application as being comprised
of concrete foundations, brick walls and iron roof (Permit 7152).
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brick residence, Richardson’s Road,” may refer to Mrs Stewart’s residence. 7* Along with this, the
rates valuation for her property rose from £6085 in the year 1912-1913 72 to £7085 for the year
1913-1914. 73

Arthur Henry White (c.1864-1920) was born in Auckland. He is said to have learned his profession
from the architect Edmund Bell, and in 1886 was awarded first certificate and a certificate of merit
for architectural drawing and design at the annual exhibition of the Auckland Society of Arts. 74
From 1890 5 to 1893 he was in partnership with Bell, after which he was an architect working
with his brothers’ mining and land estate agency. 7® He designed additions to the Prince Albert
College, Upper Queen Street, 77 and to the Mt Albert Wesleyan Sunday school, 1897; 78 designed
the Wesleyan Church and Sunday school on Mt Eden Road, 1899; 7 a brick store in Symond
Street, 8 and a shop and store at Kohukohu, 1900; 8! Forester’s hall, Birkenhead, & and two two-
storeyed brick shops, Upper Symonds Street, 1903; 8 ten brick shops for the Pitt Street Methodist
Church, 1904; 8 a Methodist Church at Rotorua, 1906; 85 Kaiapoi Woollen Company building,
Wellesley Street West, 8 the King George V Hall at Mt Albert, 87 and a hall at Huntly, 1912; 88
seven brick shops and dwellings, Kingsland, 1913; 8 Methodist Church, Dominion Road, 1915;
9% and he was honorary architect for the Green Bay Mission Church (now Blockhouse Bay Baptist
Church), 1917. °1 He died, aged 55, at his home in Mt Albert in January 1920. %2

Mary Stewart died 5 September 1914 at her home, Greenlee, aged 79. % Her son John was a co-
owner, in accordance with his father’s will, and remained so until he subdivided the property in
the 1930s. % His brother David Alexander Stewart married Leah Hodgson in 1916, % and was
granted tenancy for life on the property in 1927, living at Greenlee. He died in 1930, % and lots 8
and 9 of the subdivision of Allotment 53, which included the house, were conveyed to his widow,
Leah Stewart, in 1936. 7

In 1942, Leah Stewart applied for a permit to convert a bathroom in the house. % At this point, the
address was 55 Richardson Road. In 1948, she applied for a permit to convert the dwelling into
two flats. The address was now 69 Richardson Road. % The work does not appear to have gone
ahead; 1% instead Mrs Stewart applied for a permit in 1950 to glass-in a verandah, described as
being of weatherboard construction. 101 Leah Mabel Stewart died in 1953, and the Guardian Trust
as her will's executors sold the house to the Motherhood of Man Movement that year. 102

Motherhood of Man was started during the Second World War to support unwed mothers and
their children. The organisation arranged for medical care and both temporary residential and
hospital accommodation, and provided board in the organisation’s hostel for mother and child,
with the organisation providing a day care nursery while the mother was out working. They also,

" NZ Herald, 18 February 1913, p 12(4)

2 MAC 104 Item 28, p 108, Auckland Council Archives
 MAC 104 Item 29, p 110, Auckland Council Archives
74 NZ Herald, 26 April 1886, p.3 (supp)

s Auckland Star, 2 December 1890, p.8(6)

6 NZ Herald, 28 July 1893, p. 1(7)

7" NZ Herald, 21 August 1897, p.8(6)

8 NZ Herald, 9 October 1897, p. 8(5)

® NZ Herald, 23 September 1899, p.8(3)

80 Auckland Star, 28 April 1900, p. 2(3)

81 NZ Herald, 18 October 1900, p.8(5)

82 Auckland Star, 11 August 1903, p.2

83 NZ Herald, 29 January 1903, p.4

84 NZ Herald, 3 February 1904, p.5

8 NZ Herald, 28 July 1906, p.4

86 Auckland Star, 13 November 1912, p7(4)

87 NZ Herald, 30 July 1912, p. 9

88 Maoriland Worker, 8 March 1912, p. 10

8 NZ Herald, 17 October 1913, p.12(4)

% Auckland Star, 24 March 1915, p. 6

1 Auckland Star, 3 December 1917, p. 7

%2 Obituary, Auckland Star, 28 January 1920 p.7

% Death notice, NZ Herald, 7 September 1914, p1

% NA 97/143, LINZ records.

% Marriage notice, NZ Herald, 19 August 1916, p. 1

% Death notice, Auckland Star, 16 December 1930, p. 1
% NA 97/143, LINZ records

% permit no. 214, Auckland Council property file

% Permit no. 7152, Auckland Council property file

100 | etter from Ministry of Works to Mt Albert Borough Council, 9 November 1949, Auckland Council property file
101 permit no. 7118, Auckland Council property file

102 NA 967/71, LINZ records
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if requested by the mother, arranged for the babies to be adopted, or placed in foster homes. 103
The house at 103 Richardson Road was used as a day nursery for the organisation. 104

A fire escape was built, along with internal alterations in 1962-1963. 1% The house was transferred
to Maureen Ena Holliday and Joan Marie Pratt in 1969, 1% and still used as a day nursery; an
extension in timber sheathed with fibrolite was planned at the right rear of the building, for a cot
room, in 1971-1972. 197 Then in 1986, Rodney Funeral Home Limited took over the house, 108
with the intention of altering it to become a funeral home. However, this was declined by the Mt
Albert Borough Council, 19° so the property was sold once again, this time Thomas and Evelyn
Mary Ferguson, rest home proprietors, in 1987. 110 The following year, it was transferred to the
Auckland Hospital Board, who decided to lease it to the Richmond Fellowship as a hostel for
people who had suffered from mental iliness, as additional halfway-house accommodation to that
provided at the Auckland Mental Hospital at Pt Chevalier. There was considerable local
community opposition to this, but the Mt Albert Borough Council allowed the house to be used in
that way, with conditions. 111 The Hospital Board transferred title to the Trust in 2001, with the
Trust now known as Emerge Aotearoa Housing Trust from March 2016. They are the current
owners. 112

103 Weekly News, 8 December 1969, pp. 16-17

104 Auckland Council property files

105 permit no 12894, Auckland Council property files

106 NA 2B/543, LINZ records

107 Auckland Council property files

108 NA 2B/543, LINZ records

108 See correspondence and reports on Auckland Council property file
110 NA 64B/17, LINZ records

11 See correspondence and reports on Auckland Council property file
112 NA 64B/17, LINZ records
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Appendix 2: Supplementary research

KNOWN BUILDINGS DESIGNED BY THE ARCHITECT ARTHUR HENRY WHITE

BUILDING / ADDRESS

PHOTOGRAPH

HERITAGE

RAHIRI/ CAUGHEY
HOUSE (in Hebron
Christian School)

15 McLean Street, Mount
Albert

Constructed: 1888

Image source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections Auckland Libraries

PUAP Schedule ID:
01728, Category B

THE PRINCE ALBERT
COLLEGE

Upper Queen Street
Newton

Constructed: 1896

Demolished: ??

MT ALBERT
WESLEYAN SUNDAY
SCHOOL

837 New North Road,
Mount Albert

Constructed 1897

N/A

Image source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections Auckland Libraries

PUAP Schedule ID:
01763, Category B
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PITT STREET
BUILDINGS

211-235 Karangahape
Road, Newton

Constructed: 1904

= e

Imag source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections Auckland Libraries, 1-W883

ST JUDES ANGLICAN
CHURCH

SUNDAY SCHOOL
HALL

27 St Jude Street,
Avondale

Constructed: 1907

Image source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections Auckland Libraries

WESLEYAN CHURCH
AND SUNDAY SCHOOL

449 Mt Eden Road
Mount Eden

Church constructed: 1899
Hall constructed: 1910

rce: Sir George rey Special
Collections Auckland Libraries

Image sou

PUAP Schedule ID:
01978, Category B

Heritage New
Zealand Historic
Place Category 2
List Number 624

PUAP Schedule ID:
01860, Category B

Heritage New
Zealand Historic
Place Category 2
List Number 644

Not scheduled

FORESTER’S HALL

Hinemoa Street,
Birkenhead

Constructed: 1911

Demolished: 1970s

Image source:

PRIVATE RESIDENCE,
ARTHUR WHITES OWN
HOUSE

17 (formerly 5) Richardson
Road.

Owairaka

Constructed: 1911

N/A

www.historicbirkenhead.com

Architects 2017

Not scheduled
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KING GEORGE V HALL N/A
Mt Albert
Constructed: 1912
Demolished 1968
Image source: Hyde Family Collection
KAIAPOI WOOLLEN F N/A
COMPANY BUILDING ¥
Wellesley Street West
Auckland CBD
Constructed: 1913
Demolished: ?
B _a < -
Image Source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections, Auckland Libraries
7_A926. 1964.
‘GREENLEFE’ Not scheduled
PRVATE RESIDENCE
103 Richardson Road
Owairaka
Constructed: 1913
mage source: Burgess Treep & Knight
Architects 2017
PORTLAND BUILDING > PUAP Schedule ID:
01758, Category B
463-475 New North Road,
Kingsland Heritage New
Zealand Historic
Constructed: 1914 Place Category 2
List Number 2653
Image source Lisa Truttman, Timespanner
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DOMINION ROAD
METHODIST CHURCH

426 Dominion Road,
Mount Eden

Constructed: 1915

Image source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections, Auckland Libraries, 1052-K8-2

PUAP Schedule ID:
01642, Category B

Heritage New
Zealand Historic
Place Category 2
List Number 2607
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COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS: OTHER BUILDINGS OF A SIMILAR STYLE

BUILDING / ADDRESS

PHOTOGRAPH

HERITAGE

PRIVATE RESIDENCE

15 Bassett Road,
Remuera, Auckland

Architect: H Clinton
Savage

Constructed:

Image source: Sir George Grey Special
Collections, Auckland Libraries. Record ID

PUAP schedule ID:
01606 Category B

Heritage New
Zealand Historic
Place Category 2
List Number 597

PRIVATE RESIDENCE

53 Carlton Gore Road
Grafton, Auckland

Architect: unknown

Constructed:

None

HANNA HOUSE

11 Arney Road, Remuera,
Auckland

Architect: Gerald Jones

Constructed: 1915

‘Sir George Grey Special 6Iieéﬁ, o
Auckland Libraries’ 435-C5-49

Historic Place
Category 1 List
Number 107

PUAP schedule ID:
01601 Category B

PATTERSON HOUSE

85 Arney Road, Remuera
Auckland

Image source: www.maps.google.co.nz.
Copyright: Google Maps 2011.

PUAP Schedule ID
02775 Category B

Historic Place
Category 2
List Number 2633
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‘PENMAN HOUSEFE’
FORMER DOCTORS
RESIDENCE

145 Carrington Road,
Mount Albert, Auckland

Architect: unknown

Constructed: 1909

SUGGESTED ADDITIONAL WARD FOR MENTAL HOSPITAL, at the corner of Woodward .
Strect and Gladstone Road. Ratepayers have’ protested to the Mount Albert Borough Council
against the extensign of the Mental ‘Hospital in this district.

Image source: Timespanner blog, Lisa
Truttman

None
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Appendix 3: Certificate(s) of Title

- N ) e oy - = \

Reference: Land and Deeds 69 g
Prior C/T. 967/70, 71 §

‘ &
Transfer No. 708595
N/C.grda\'No. REGISTER E

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT Zﬁ

Thig Certificate dated the 2nd day of October one thousand nine hundred and sixty-three

under the seal of the District Land Registrar of the Land Registration District of  Norih Auckland

WITNESSETH that MOTHERHCOD OF MAN MQVENENT INCORPORATED at Auckland

is seised of an estate in fee-simple (subject to such reservations, Testrictions, encuwbrances, liens, and interests as are notified by
memorial underwritten or endorsed hereon) in the land hereinafter described, delineated with bold black lines on the plan hereon,
be the several admeasurements a little more or less, that is to say: All that parcel of land containing 2 ROODS 3.9
PERCHES more or leas being Lot 2 Deposited Flan 52144 and being part Alloiment
53 Parish of Titirangi.

7

Assistant Land Registrar

Agrecment as to fencing contained in Trunsfer

L7514,
KOUrogge  4.1L.x.
MHR'CA"E%'_S St i 4.158390 Mg‘lga of New
Converio L A = South Wale
v n Factors: 9.44 oo
1 Acre = 4046m? . .
1 Perch = 25,29mz A.L.R

1 Link = ,2012 metres

A.407182 Transfer to Maureen Ena
Holliday and Joan lMarie FPratt both

of Auckland femes sole -
5.8.1969 at 2.10.0'c. W_

BT o R
A.407183 Korteg@® e Auckland
mz Alberl BOr‘Ough Co-operatio\?,\g‘zr g Buildin
Society -VJ)L.8 2.1C,0" d
N
: A.L.R.
A.407184 Kort X b?%ﬁe_: Motherhood
of Man Movad‘g% %ncWe’bed -
5.8.1969 at 370,88 o »
on. 12662 ¥ A
o A.L.R.
' 304264.1 Variation of Mortgage
il 1407185 — 29.7.1[74 atg2.21 oc.
m > : for A.L.R.
-~ B.251328.1 -‘}A‘tg X ®iking Group (New
Q Zealand) Limit J g% Nt 12.16 oc.
/S
9 7Y G
z Scale: 1 inch= 2 choains thmbnnw.;];;} L
Dz LA
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B.508804.2 Transfer to quney F
Home Limited- at Auckland - 21.2
at 10.06 o'c

having been declared lost, this certs ate
of title is cancelled and a new certificate
of title Vol.64B Folio 17 is issued in

lieu thereof - Yoo
produced 11.8.1986 at 9.43 oc.

entered 5.9.1986 at 9.0¢/oc.

| IS

CANCELLED =

Iy

Iida

I

_,,.._’-_,w
[ [N

T e
= Wia

I ya
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA64B.17
Issued 5 September 1986

COMPUTER FREEHOLD REGISTER
UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT 1952

Historical Search Copy

R.W. Muir
Registrar-Cieneral
of Land

Identifier NA64B/17
Land Registration District North Auckland
Date Issued 05 September 1986

Prior References

NA2B/543
Estate Fee Simple
Area 2122 square metres more or less

Legal Description Lot 2 Deposited Plan 52114

Original Proprietors
Richmond Fellowship New Zealand Incorporated

Interests

Fencing Agreement in Transfer 475141

D644882.1 Mortgage to Her Majesty the Queen - 2.10.2001 at 9.00 am

8614113.9 Discharge of Mortgage D644882.1 - 1.11.2010 at 3:45 pm

8614113.14 Transfer to Richmond New Zealand Trust - 1.11.2010 at 3:45 pm

10124946.1 Change of Name of Richmond New Zealand Trust to Emerge Aotearoa Trust - 24.3.2016 at 3:13 pm
10124946.2 Transfer to Emerge Aotearoa Housing Trust - 24.3.2016 at 3:13 pm

Transaction Id 48154860 Historical Search Copy Dated 13/09/16 2:04 pm, Page 1 of |

Client Reference  etruttman001

HISTORIC HERITAGE EVALUATION — ‘Greenlee’ (former) 103 Richardson Road, Owairaka. 39
BURGESS TREEP + KNIGHT ARCHITECTS LTD.



CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA64B.17b
Issued 5 September 1986 to Rodney Funeral Home Ltd, Auckland

A

9.13 oc. an% 1( &(_9, 0pe
\\ -t : Mt Albert  City

- o

v ; z
References . Land and Deeds 69 i
Prior C/T 2B/543 %
Declaration of- Loss: B.566896.1 o
Transfer No. =
N/C. Order No. L
REGISTER - —_
z ~
~
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT
This Certificate dated the Sth  day of September one thousand nine hundred and eighty-six
under the seal of the District Land Registrar of the Land Registration District of ~ NORTH AUCKLAND

WITNESSETH that RODNEY FUNERAL HOME LIMITED at Auckland

is seised of an estate in fee-simple (subject 10 such reservations, restrictions, encumbrances, liens, and interests as are notified by
memorial underwritten or endorsed hereon) in the land hereinafter described, deli d with bold black lines on the plan hereon,
be the several admeasurements a little more or less, that is to say: All that parcel of land containing 2122 square %

metres more or less being Lot 2 Deposited Flan 52114 and being part Allotment 53 Parish

of Titirangi.

Fencing Agreer'nent in Transier“.ﬂsul.
biyodsh

B.566896.2 Mortgage t

New Zealand Limi %‘

7 A.L.R
B671038.2 Transfer to Thomas Ferguson of
Auckland, Rest Home Proprietor “and Evelyn
Mary Ferguson his wife - 3.6.1987 at 1.54
p.m

B671038.3 Mortgage t
Tabernacle Trust B
p.mSBIARTZ -}

; an A.L.R 1 ‘90
B671038.4 - Mortgage ,-t%\ Haxwellﬁ,allen

and Heather Ruth /A" - 3.6.1987 at'1.54

Psom
583732 /6,\9\! o
£ ’ é’(’ A.L.R
B671038F.5 Monga'g'eﬁ\ f New Zealand
- 3.6.1987 at 1.54 ‘3 M

BZI9373.3 7 é)\
y G
Sy

B.819374.1 Transfer to The Auckland Hospital
Board at Auckland - 26.4.1988-at 2.3§c'c

\ IS

Measurements are Metric

A.L.R.

No. &#48 / 17
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE No. G‘—*k—‘?/ 7

C.561107.1 Application to register Auckland
Healthcare Services Limited on the
registered proprietor pursuant to Clause 9
(1) of the Health Reforms (Transitional
Provisions) Act 1993 - 25.1.1994 at 2.26
o'c

D639063.2 Transfer to Richmond Fellowship
New Zealand Incorporated
11.9,2001 at 11.44

~C

for RGL
D644882.1 Mortgage to Her Majesty the
Queen
2.10.2001 at 9.00 SJ @

for RGL

36797C-50,000/5/85MK
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA75.132

C Bty
Reference : {\ rveakorvlY2 11

NEW ZEALAND.

This @ltﬁﬁt&t! dated the iZ _ day Of_‘Ml!d_t, one thousand eight bundred and ninety- foer<; under s
the hand and eeal of the Di drhg,mnru[ the Land R - 5

[Foun B. -

Register-bovk, =
Val. 76’ Jolio / 32- 3

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT. 5

District of _y dou o feny el - _Olitnesseth  that Z

LiZ[L]_L__l(’JL)ClJ A of st csasin. Sacmpiensetes Tuaisswss =

18 15 seised of an estate in feo-simple (subject to such reservations, restrictions, encumbrances, liens, and interests as are notified by memorial under-written

or indorsed hereon, subject aleo to any existing right-of the Crown to take and lay off roads under the provisions of any Act of the General Assembly

of New Zealand) in the land hereinafter di d, as the same is d

a little moro or less, that is to say: Al that parcel of land containing

M\LLL.MMM_LLZJMMM &
fficccnt Quackolonmck-cna N HIZ,. ikl '

i in frlonas e f109 Soel san thie Awmred L

d by the plan bereon bordered gaceas , be the several ad:eusurements * )(

,&Md‘alx_m
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA97.143
Issued 7 April 1900 to Mary Stewart and John Stewart of Auckland

NEW ZEALAND.

Vil 7J oo /38

Reference : {
Transfer No.

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT.

Forx B~

This Ceutificate, antodthe Aogr M aayof [cls ., one thousnd és‘é&i'hnuama..may———.undmga .
the hand and soal of the Dmmu. L-n:l“ itrar of o Tand Registration District of_ (deerlotonof  Wlitnessety that
/(té/.‘é‘c_/ '9/<c(c£</ Wostosds: ciuil //Nu i Ll ot . ,//(mmL
C([ﬁ oA e Ctaeliiud e E g oo ey
& K Soinod of an estato i fo-simplo (subject to anch resarvations, restrioti liens, and interests as aco notified by memorial underwritten

or indorsed hereon ; subject also to any existing right of the Crown to take and lay off roads under the provisions of any Act of the General Assembly
, be the several admeasaremonts

Lo (52)

of New Zealand) in the land b described, as the same is dolineated by the plan hereon, bordered _
o little moro ox loss, that is to say: All that parcel of land ini Stpciilid gaeets Vi eoved stk Lol
/ i (s Leciv Jols i/ zl lel?/ur. VL ctibly feoe) oxd Y pibly Hbre ) o),
z l/uo[z L-,/ ’/c/cuu/ac A :
v 7 .
Y2/

_/ﬁ_l -

7

"3 ////Mf @j
_ A d/ Lorod [ v/
_2( L/__(LLLgE%/ L,_,LJQ /'_:L/V x,_uﬁ(m{/

_d.{;. ’),J-& “«)’ ) /
M’v ’\' 4;,,,., de_mf_
‘ /_,I"fly_a.iﬁ_..._t_u : Lo
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Z?;—n(i 3}, 2343 (7' A, ol Lo, ks
-S4 L] At (R ek A
by e Ciligldbe il Cousait
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Cecnops Lo 20 (L dbe dconne Easlove o
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA669.241
Issued 8 November 1935 to Leah Stewart of Auckland, Widow

—

{Land and Desds—4.

orx B.
NEW ZEALAND. _ i

Vol. 97 , Folio 143

Transfer No. 273136 . Register-book,

Reference :
Application No. Vol. 669, folic 241
Order for N/C No.

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT.

This Certificate, antedtho efgnth dssof _ Hoyember - ome thoasand nine hundred and  thirty five

under the hand and seal of the District Land Registrar of the Land Registration Distriot of _AUCKIAND Witnesseth that

LEAH STEWART of Auckland, Widow

in soised of an estate in feo-simple (subject to such reser b liens, and i notified by ial under written
or endorsed hereon, subject also to any existing right of tho Urown to take and Iay off roads under the provisions of any Aok of the General Assembly
of New Zoaland) in the land hereinafter desoribod, as the same is delinested by the plan berson bordered ___green , b the several admeasarementa
& littlo move or less, that is to say : All that parcel of Iand containing  ope rood eleven perchesm and five tenths of s perch

more or less situated in the Borough of Mount Albert being Lot Ten (10) on a plan deposited inthe Land——
Regiatry Office st Auckland as No. 21108 snd being part of Allotments 52 and 93 of the Parish of Titirangl.

w.w

Asais tant Bitrict Land Registrar.

Agreement aa to fencing contained in Transfer No.223136.

Aset.Land Regr

C17999 \aneclloor eak s fllass

T

iy

T

A 1/193 9 (2918 amol ness Hcade

e > Y A PN 5 iy 7
z ] (G0

3
Caugs \lawe e,
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Y e EX P ETIIR Ye iy S CR ., -

Scale: [£ Ghains fo ‘7'7,,,4}1‘%'
e
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cent 208 /1233, 70 A ar
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA673.137
Issued 21 April 1936 to Leah Stewart of Mount Albert, Widow

NEW ZEALAND.

Yol g7 , Folio 143 “
C s Trarfer No. 276212 Register-book,
Appiication No. Vol. 673 ,fio 137
\Order for N/C No.

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT.

This Gutificate, dsted the  syenty 2irat  dyo___ Aprsd . one thousand nine bundred sl _thirty six
under the hand and seal of the Distriot Land Registrar of the Land Bogistostion Districtof  anoxzawn __ Witnesgeth thak
LEAN BTERWASRT af KounkAlbers fdew =

© 2 RN L ﬂ'\“& i

Y e T et e LTS ? m

inssisod of e in foo-sitmplo (subject ko waoh -‘ i d ke ,,..mw:.y memorial uudts: ""’3'-,‘
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mv"mnm o Jand hareinsfter dnscrite, Ne W0t B the jen horgon bordertd__graen hathomwnlldmmumani!

o lstle ma o Joss, thsb is to say : mwpﬂdhﬂmﬂ ‘roed tweaty sight perches and seven temths

of B mnn_mxg o lese_ mmmmm; belng ZowBight (8) and ¥ine (9) on & plan

| MNMLMI part of Alloiments 52 ang 53 of the
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B

Assistant -BéwsierLond Registrar,
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA830.168
Issued 16 April 1945 to Leah Stewart of Mount Albert, Auckland, Widow.

[Land a0d Deeds— 4.

Form B.
L Vo 6T3, Fokio 137, 669/241.
m“r e Va. 830 folio 168.
& "\ Application No.

Order for N/C No. C+21485

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT

@his Cedtificate, datd the__ sixteenth  dayof  _April ., one thousnd nine bundred and__ fOPty=five
under the hand and seal of the District Land Registrar of the Land Registration District of _AUCKLAND  @dnesseth that

LEAH STEWART  of Mount Albert, Auckland, Widow, . R —

is seised of an estate in foosimple (subject to such i ioti b lions, and interests a3 are notified by memorial under written
or endorsed hereon; subject also to any existing right of the Crown to tako and Iay off rosds under the provisions of any Act of the General Assembly
of New Zealand) in the land hereinafter described, as the samo is delinested bytbephnhmboxdamd__m.!n_.bot}nnvuddmmu
& littls more or loss, that is to ssy: All that parcel of land Mw_qmmmm_mmre or less situn-
ted in the Borough of Mount Albert being Lots one (1) and throo. (3) on_a plan deposited in the Lend Registry.
Office at Auckland as No.29178 snd being portion of Al) 52 IR TR T, DU—

A — - s e

/i Albert MA
® A8s1stantHistricd Land Registrar.
Agresment as to fencing affecting Lot 3 sbove described

\ contained in Transfer No,273136. _ wcoremeorccco—d -
e :&t ______Asot, Lz_ﬂ
g 455672 4 2. » mf
g W 4 &% % 7 /éw e
/Q,V.LMMZ a0 B ermeechecd ,“4

flams 37303 Leaks lcnrt

D208

Z-;‘":ﬂ_ g g5 11 of, Kot 2
b A arret® e fomnt
7= ‘—I‘,,{Ql", .50 0'c —

Lo JLQ = —

DR LFLE
DR 20555

Totat Awar /L 12 s e S S i e s
KL
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA967.70
Issued 27 June 1950 to Noel Barrett of Auckland, drainage contractor and Joan Barrett,

his wife.

[Land axd Desds 1.

NEW ZEALAND : Form B.
Register-book.

Vol. ~'830, Folio 168
!a Vo 967 | plio 70

Transfer No| L75141
Reference: |

|Aypluufwn Xo.
(Order for I\'/C No.
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT
Thig Certificate, dated the_tmenty-seventh aupor _ June —, one thousand nine hundred and___ ALY .
under the hand and scal of the District Land Registrar of the Land Registration District of. AUCKLAND i that
NOEL BARRETT of Auckland, Dreinege Contractor, and J. QAN a3 19 03 B N ) ¢ v—
wife are

5 seised of an estate in fole[simp!a (subject to such reservations, restrictions, encumbrsnces, lions, and interests as are notified by memorial under written
or endorsed hereon’; lnbjm_ also to any existing right of the Crown to take and lay off rosds under the provisions of any Act of the Genoral Assombly
u\n{an Zealand) in the land hemndm described, as the same is delineated by the plan hereon bordered______8F€en | be the soveral admeasurements
a little more or loss, that is to say: All that parcel of land containing __00€ rood sixteen perches more or lese situated in the
Sorough of Mount Albert,being Lot 2 Deposited ¥lan 37303 snd helng part af Allotment 53 Parieh of irtrangl

: ..jlf,i.ﬂlbart Borough:

'r. Saate: MWachavnms : Ivmery v
t a
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CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NA967.71
Issued 27 June 1950 to Leah Stewart, Mount Albert, Widow

[Taod agd Deeds 1

NEW ZEALAND Form B.

Vol 8307, Folio 168 Btk
= ]de, Mo Gorin Vol 967 ,fic 71
R gt Mo
Order for X/C Np©n27209.
CERTIFICATE OF TITLE UNDER LAND TRANSFER ACT
This Certificate, dated tho -geventh _day of ___June one thousand nine hundred and___ fi£Y
under the hand and sl of the District Land Registrar of the Tand Regisiration District of ____ AUCKLAND Witnessety that
LEAH STEWART of Mount Albert, ‘idow

is seised of an cstate in fec-simple [subject to such reservations, restrictions, encumbrances, liens, and interests as cre notified by memorial under written
or endorsed hereon ; subjoct also to any existing right of the Crown to take and lay off roads under the provisions of any Act of the General Assembly
of Now Zealand) in the land hereinafter described, as the sama is delineated by tho plan hereon bordered____green ___ bo the several admeasurencnts
a little more or less, that is to say: All that porcel of land containing two roods twenty-eight decimal eignt perches more or_le_af
situated in the Borough of Mount Albert being Lot 1 Deposited Plan 37303 and being part of Allotment 53 Parish
of Titirengl

slstantdisnet Land Registrar.

A H Q%n i 7
] mmﬂ}zv‘az /éﬂmaé«.«.

...z‘za—_é'::r
e LRl ni 2.7
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Appendix 4: Photographs

Figure 16: Shing the street (east) fa(;ad of the house at13 Ricarson road.
Treep & Knight 2016

S T

Image source: Burgess

Treep & Knight 2016
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Flgure 18 Showmg the north east corner of the house at 103 Rlchardson road. Image source: Burgess

Treep & Knight 2016

L)

. USHE e rA ] . 2
Flgure 19 Showmg the gable end detall on the north facade of the house at 103 Rlchardson road
source: Burgess Treep & Knight 2016

HISTORIC HERITAGE EVALUATION — ‘Greenlee’ (former) 103 Richardson Road, Owairaka.
BURGESS TREEP + KNIGHT ARCHITECTS LTD.

Image

53



.

Figure 21 Showing the poss marking the entrance to the property at 103 Richardson road.
Burgess Treep & Knight 2016
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Appendix 5: Architectural Drawings
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Figure 22: Architectural drawings of ‘Greenlee’ by A. H. White. Ihwage source: Auckland Council Archives
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